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The Paralegal/Legal Studies program at Florida National College focuses on developing studentõs 

knowledge about the origins, content, operation and consequences of laws and policies.  This 

knowledge should not be restricted solely to legal professionals such as lawyers and judges.   The 

Florida National College Paralegal/Legal Stud ies programs help its students to think critically, 

identify and solve practical, intellectual and ethical problems and to communicate their views 

effectively orally and in writing.  

The purpose of the Bachelor of Arts in Legal Studies (LSBA) Program is to expand students' critical 

and analytical thinking skills, advance students' ability to communicate complex data, both verbally 

and written, and prepare students for higher -lever positions within the legal profession, or gain 

admission to law school.   

The Paralegal program has been designed for those students seeking a career in law. Students will 

take courses that survey the American legal system, as well as courses in communication, 

humanities, behavioral science, mathematics, natural science, and compute rs. Florida National 

College will award an Associate of Arts in Paralegal upon graduation to those students who complete 

the necessary requirements. Upon graduating, students may pursue upper -level studies, or 

commence a career within the legal profession* .  

 

*Note: Employment within the legal profession may require the successful completion of a criminal 

background check, and character fitness (including credit -worthiness).  
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Campus Life 
 

NEW STUDENT ORIENTATION 

A day for orientation of new students is conducted for each academic start. New students will learn about 

procedures from FNC officers, receive their program schedules, and parking information; fulfill entrance test 

requirements; get acquainted with the use of the FNC Library. 

PLACEMENT ASSISTANCE 

FNC offers employability training, job referrals, and participation in annual job fairs. This is a lifetime service 

available to active, withdrawals, and graduate students in good standing. Students are strongly urged to maintain 

contact with FNC when they obtain employment, change jobs, need further assistance, or relocate to another 

area. There is a Placement Office at each FNC campus.  NOTE: Florida National College cannot guarantee 

placement following graduation. 

BOOKSTORE 

All students are required to have their textbooks and other materials by the first week of class. Textbooks, 

workbooks, supplies and materials for all courses are available from the bookstore at each campus during the first 

ten days of each start. Students are not, however, required to buy their books and supplies at the Florida National 

College bookstore as this is only a service we provide to the students. 

LOUNGE AREA 

Soft drinks and snacks are available in vending machines in the lounge area.  

HOUSING 

FNC does not have residence halls. Assistance with local housing information will be provided on request. The 

three campuses can be reached using city transportation services. 

STUDENT IDENTIFICATION CARD 

Students will be issued a picture identification card. This identification card must be worn at all times. The student 

will not be allowed on the premises without an identification card or a pass. In the event that a student is expelled 

or suspended from FNC, the student must immediately surrender his/her FNC identification card to the Campus 

Dean. 

STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION 

Florida National College Student Government Association (FNCSGA) is the self-governing student entity serving as 

a liaison between the student body, the faculty, and the administration. It seeks to foster professional 

development in an atmosphere of friendship and participation. The SGA is responsible for assisting the Student 

Services office in organizing student activities such as dances, sports, parties, picnics, fund-raisers, and other. 
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CHILD CARE SERVICES 

Little Angels Children Development Center provides child care services and after school programs. 

Registration is $55.00 (academic year). The registration fee is non-refundable. The Center accepts children from 0 

to 5 years old. A 10% discount for all members of FNC (college students and staff) is offered. 

STUDENT GRIEVANCES 

Student grievances will be handled according to the student grievance policies and procedures; these procedures 

are explained in the Student Handbook. The handbook is available on the website. 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 

Graduation is ƴƻǘ ŀǳǘƻƳŀǘƛŎΦ ¢ƻ ōŜ ŀǿŀǊŘŜŘ ŀ ōŀŎŎŀƭŀǳǊŜŀǘŜ ŘŜƎǊŜŜΣ ŀǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜΩǎ ŘŜƎǊŜŜΣ ŘƛǇƭƻƳŀ ƻǊ ŎŜǊǘƛŦƛŎŀǘŜ 

from Florida National College the student must fulfill the following requisites: 

1. Successful completion of one of the programs of study as it appears in the Catalog. 

нΦ !ŎƘƛŜǾŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ŀ ŎǳƳǳƭŀǘƛǾŜ ƎǊŀŘŜ Ǉƻƛƴǘ ŀǾŜǊŀƎŜ ό/Dt!ύ ƻŦ ŀǘ ƭŜŀǎǘ нΦл όφ/ớ average). 

3. Complete an Exit Interview with each of the following offices. Clearance from each of these offices is required 

previous to the release of any official document by FNC. 

These offices and their role in the graduation procedure are shown in Table 1 below. 
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Scholarships 

 

JOSÉ REGUEIRO SCHOLARSHIP 

The José Regueiro Scholarship, in honor of the President of the institution, is a Florida National College 
scholarship. The scholarship is to be awarded every year to the winner of an essay contest, open to high school 
candidates, on the subject of ˈ ñThe Importance of a College Degree.ķ 

Deadline: June 1 

Basis for Selection: The content of the essay and the writing skills exhibited in the essay. 
Sum Awarded: The complete tuition cost of the program of his/her choice from the Associate of Arts or Science 
Degree programs offered by FNC. 
 
APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR THE J. REGUEIRO SCHOLARSHIP 
The applicant must: 
1. Be a graduating senior of a Dade County public or private high school. 
2. Be a U.S. citizen or permanent resident. 
3. Provide two testimonials from school, business, church and/or leaders in the community testifying to good 
moral character and reputation. 
4. Submit an essay on ̍The Importance of a College Degree.ớ 
5. Demonstrate financial need. 
6. Submit official high school transcript with the application. 
 

DIAZ-BALART SCHOLARSHIP 

The Díaz-Balart Scholarship has been established by Florida National College to honor the Díaz-Balart family. 
Political immigrants from Cuba, the Díaz-Balart family has continued in the United States its long history of 
public service, which began many years ago in their homeland. The scholarship is awarded to a student who is an 
immigrant to the United States of America. 

The scholarship is to be awarded every year to the winner of an essay contest, written by high school candidates 
on the subject of ĶEducational Opportunities within the American Democracyķ. 

 

The Paralegal/Legal Studies Handbook         Page 3 

Florida National College 

 

 

 



 

Deadline: June 1 

Basis for Selection: Must be an immigrant to the United States of America. The content of the essay and the writing 
skills exhibited in the essay. 
Source of the Díaz-Balart Scholarship: College revenue. 
Sum Awarded: The complete tuition cost of the program of his/her choice from the Bachelor of Science, Associate 
of Arts or Science Degree programs offered by FNC. 
 
APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR THE DIAZ-BALART SCHOLARSHIP 
THE APPLICANT MUST: 
1. Be a graduating senior of a Dade County public or private high school. 
2. Be a U.S. citizen or permanent resident. 
3. Provide two testimonials from school, business, church and/or leaders in the community testifying to good 
moral character and reputation. 
4. Demonstrate financial need. 
5. Submit official high school transcript with the application. 
 

FNC / GOVERNMENT SCHOLARSHIP 

The FNC/Government Scholarship is a Florida National College scholarship. The scholarship is to be awarded 
every year to a government employee. 

Basis for Selection: Must be a government employee; referral must be from a government agency. 

Source of the Scholarship: College revenue. 

Sum Awarded: The scholarship covers 15% of the tuition cost for baccalaureate and associate degree programs 
offered by FNC. 

UPWARD BOUND SCHOLARSHIP 

The Upward Bound Scholarship is a Florida National College scholarship. The scholarship is to be awarded every 
year to students graduating from the Upward Bound Program sponsored by FNC. 

THE APPLICANT MUST: 

1. Be a student who has participated in the program for at least two years. 
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2. Have a 2.5 GPA at the time of graduation. 
3. Be a first generation or low income student. 
4. Graduate from Florida National CollegeĴs Upward Bound Program. 
5. Maintain a 2.5 GPA at Florida National College. 
 

DR. MANUEL VIAMONTE SCHOLARSHIP 

The Dr. Manuel Viamonte Scholarship is a Florida National College scholarship to be awarded to a Radiology 
Technology student. The scholarship will be awarded every year to the winner of an essay contest, open to high 
school candidates, on the subject of ˈThe Importance of studies in Radiology.ķ 

Deadline: June 1 
 
Basis for Selection: The content of the essay and the writing skills exhibited in the essay. 
Source: College revenue. 
Sum Awarded: The complete tuition cost of the Radiology Technology program. 
 
APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR THE DR. VIAMONTE SCHOLARSHIP 
The applicant must: 
1. Be a graduating senior of a Dade County public or private high school. 
2. Be a U.S. citizen or permanent resident. 
3. Provide two testimonials from school, business, church and/or leaders in the community testifying to good 
moral character and reputation. 
4. Submit an essay on ̍The Importance of studies in Radiology. 
5. Demonstrate financial need. 
6. Submit official high school transcript with the application. 
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What to expect in the Paralegal/Legal Studies Program 

The Paralegal/Legal Studies program at Florida National College focuses on developing studentĴs knowledge about the 
origins, content, operation and consequences of laws and policies.  This knowledge should not be restricted solely to 
legal professionals such as lawyers and judges.   The Florida National College Paralegal/Legal Studies programs help 
its students to think critically, identify and solve practical, intellectual and ethical problems and to communicate their 
views effectively orally and in writing. 
 
The purpose of the Bachelor of Arts in Legal Studies (LSBA) Program is to expand students' critical and analytical 
thinking skills, advance students' ability to communicate complex data, both verbally and written, and prepare 
students for higher- lever positions within the legal profession, or gain admission to law school.   
 

Legal Studies (LS), Bachelor of Arts Degree  
 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS (A MINIMUM OF 120 CREDITS)  

REQUIRED COURSES  

 

General Education Requirements (39 Credits)  

COMMUNICATIONS (9 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

ENC 1101  English Compositi on I **  3  

ENC 1102  English Composition II **  3  

SPC 1040  Fundamentals of Oral Communication  3  

HUMANITIES (6 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

6  

BEHAVIORAL/ SOCIAL SCIENCE (6 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

6  

NATURAL SCIENCE (7 CREDITS includes 1 Lab. 

hour)  

Credit Hours  

7  

MATHEMATICS (7 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

MAC 1105  College Algebra I **  3  

STA 2014  Introduction to Statistics**  4  

COMPUTERS (4 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

CGS 1030  Introduction to Information Technology  4  

SLS 1501  College Study S kills  0  

CORE REQUIREMENTS (48 CREDITS)  

Lower Level Courses (12 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

PLA 2104  Legal Research & Writing I  3  

PLA 2114  Legal Research & Writing II  3  

PLA 2201  Introduction to Civil Procedure  3  

PLA 2700  Ethics and Profession al Responsibility  3  

 

Lower Level Electives  (9 CREDITS) 
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Upper Level Courses (30 CREDITS)  

 

Credit Hours  

PLA 3304  Criminal Law  3  

PLA 3115  Legal Research & Writing III (**)  3  

PLA 3223  Civil Litigation  3  

PLA 3308  Criminal Procedure  3  

PLA 3274  Tort Law  3  

PLA 4880  Constitutional Law  3  

PENDING  Logic and the Law  3  

PENDING  The Law of Contracts  3  

PENDING  Property Law  3  

 

 

PLA 4950  Legal Studies Capstone  3  

ELECTIVES (33 CREDITS)  

Suggested Electives  Credit Hours  

PLA 4116  Legal Research & Writing IV (**)  3  

CCJ 3011  Juvenile Justice  3  

PLA 3570  International Law  3  

PLA 4410  Intellectual Property  3  

PLA 4844  Immigration Law  3  

PENDING  Bankruptcy Law  3  

PENDING  Health Law & Ethics  3  

PENDING  Evidence Law  3  

PLA 3434  Business Organizations  3  

PLA 3803  Domestic Relations Law  3  

 

 

Paralegal Studies (PLS), Associate of Arts Degree  
This program has been designed for those students seeking a career in law. Students will take 

courses that surve y the American legal system, as well as courses in communication, 

humanities, behavioral science, mathematics, natural science, and computers. Florida National 

College will award an Associate of Arts in Paralegal upon graduation to those students who 

compl ete the necessary requirements. Upon graduating, students may pursue upper -level 

studies, or commence a career within the legal profession*. *Note: Employment within the legal 

profession may require the successful completion of a criminal background check,  and 

character fitness (including credit -worthiness).  

 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS (A MINIMUM OF 60 CREDITS)  

REQUIRED COURSES  

General Education Requirements (39 Credits)  

COMMUNICATIONS (9 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

ENC 1101  English Composition I **  3  

ENC 1102  English Composition II **  3  

SPC 1017  Fundamentals of Oral Communication  3  

HUMANITIES (6 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

6  

BEHAVIORAL/ SOCIAL SCIENCE (6 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

6  

NATURAL SCIENCE (7 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

7  

MATHEMATICS (7 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  
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MAC 1105  

 

College Algebra I **  

 

3  

 

STA 2014  

 

Introduction to Statistics**  

 

4  

COMPUTERS (4 CREDITS)  Credit Hours  

CGS 1030  Introduction to Information Technology  4  

CORE REQUIREMENTS (12 CREDITS)  

PLA 2104  Legal Re search and Writing I  3  

PLA 2114  Legal Research and Writing II  3  

PLA 2700  Professional Ethics and Liability  3  

PLA 2201  Introduction to Civil Procedure  3  

 

SUGGESTED ELECTIVES (9 CREDITS)  

PLA 1426  Contracts and Business Entities  3  

BUL 2131  Business Law  3  

PLA 2303   Criminal Law and Procedure   3  

PLA 2273   Introduction to Torts   3  
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Wh y major in Legal Studies?  What do Legal Studies Majors do? 

All students have questions about their proposed field of study 
and what their future will hold professionally and personally.  
At the moment, you may not have your entire life planned out; 
however, it could be useful to have some basic information to 
consider when thinking about what you want to do when you 
leave school.  Therefore, the following comments are to help 
paralegal/legal studies majors think about the variety of 
career options that await them upon graduation.   

Paralegal/Legal Studies is an inherently interesting field.  Legal 
Studies is also a very useful foundation for obtaining satisfying 
employment.  Our graduates are highly regarded by 
employers in the public and private sector. Legal Studies 
provides a good grounding in legal knowledge required in 
many other areas of employment and helps to educate and 
prepare students for careers in such areas those listed below.   
The U.S. Department of LaborĴs survey lists the paralegal 
profession as one of the fastest growing in the country for the 
next decade.   According to the 2008 National Association of 
Legal Assistants survey, paralegals earned an average salary of 
over $50,000 last year, including bonuses.  Some higher- level 
paralegals made over $80,000.   According to the Medical-
Legal Consulting Institute, many legal nurse consultants 
charge $125 to $150 per hour and court reporters earn a 
median salary of $50,380. 
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Possible Career Options 
(Practice areas supporting lawyers) 

 

Bankruptcy 
Business/Corporate  
Collections  
Family Law  
Foreclosures  
Immigration  
Intellectual Property  
Litigation  
Probate and Estate Planning  
Real Estate  
Securities Law  
Criminal Law 
Personal Injury 
Claim Examiner 
Law Clerk 
Legal Aide  
Legal Assistant 
Legal Research Assistant 
Legal Technician  
Occupational Safety and 
Health Worker  
Paralegal 
Patent Agent 
Title Examiner 
Compensation and Benefits 
Manager 
 

Compliance and 
Enforcement Inspector 
Contract Consultant 
Forms and Procedures 
Specialist 
Freelance Paralegal  
Labor Relations Specialist  
 



 

Skills that students will develop in the Paralegal/Legal Studies Program 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Critical Thinking Skills 

¶ Analyze a problem; identify and evaluate 

alternative solutions 

¶ Formulate logical solutions to problems; 

construct logical arguments in support of 

specific positions; evaluate solutions and 

arguments 

¶ Determine which areas of law are relevant to a 

particular situation  

¶ Apply principles of professional ethics to 

specific factual situations 

¶ Identify interrelationships among cases, 

statutes, regulations, and other legal authorities 

¶ Apply recognized legal authority to a specific 

factual situation 

¶ Analyze factual situations to determine when it 

is appropriate to apply exceptions to general 

legal rules 

¶ Apply exceptions to general legal rules; 

Distinguish evidentiary facts from other 

material and/or controlling facts 

¶ Identify factual omissions and inconsistencies 

Organizational Skills 

¶ Sort information by category 

¶ Prioritize assignments and client needs 

¶ Manage information manually and through 

computerized databases 

¶ Utilize time efficiently 

Communication Skills 

¶ Interact effectively, in person, by telephone 

and in written correspondence with lawyers, 

clients, witnesses, court personnel, co-workers, 

and other business professionals 

¶ Conduct effective interviews with clients, 

witnesses and experts 

¶ Exhibit tact and diplomacy; distinguish 

between assertive and aggressive behavior; 

apply assertive behavior techniques 

¶ Adapt to situations as they arise 

¶ Multi-task 

¶ Understand the need to ask questions and seek 

guidance when appropriate 

¶ Identify attributes of a team player; work 

effectively as part of a team 

¶  Work independently and with a minimal 

amount of supervision when appropriate 

Legal Research Skills 

¶ Prepare and carry out a legal research plan; analyze and categorize key facts in a situation 

¶ Use both print and electronic sources of law to locate applicable statutes, administrative regulations, 

constitutional provisions, court cases and other primary source materials 

¶ Use both print and electronic sources of law to locate treatises, law review articles, legal encyclopedias, and other 

secondary source materials that help explain the law 

¶ Read, evaluate and analyze both print and electronic sources of law, and apply them to issues requiring legal 

analysis 

¶ Properly cite both print and electronic sources of law 

¶ ά/ƛǘŜ ŎƘŜŎƪέ ƭŜƎŀƭ ǎƻǳǊŎŜǎΤ ŀƴŘ 

¶ Identify, locate and appropriately use both print and electronic resources to update and verify the reliability of 

cited legal authority 
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Legal Research Skills 

¶ Understand and apply principles of writing 

and rules of English grammar to all writing 

tasks 

¶ Write in a style that conveys legal theory in a 

clear and concise manner 

¶ Read and apply a court opinion to a fact 

situation 

¶ Report legal research findings in a standard 

interoffice memorandum or other 

appropriate format  

¶ Cite print and electronic primary and 

secondary sources in proper form 

¶ Draft client correspondence and legal 

documents, using proper format and 

appropriate content 

¶ Locate and modify standardize forms found in 

formbooks, pleadings files, form files, or a 

computer data bank to fit a particular 

situation. 

Interviewing and Investigation Skills 

¶ Identify and locate witnesses, potential parties 

to a suit and experts 

¶ Develop a list of questions for an interview, 

conduct an effective interview; record the 

interview accurately 

¶ Locate and prepare request documents to 

obtain information that is commonly 

maintained by government entities; obtain 

such information; read and interpret the 

information contained in such records and 

apply to a given situation; 

¶ Prepare releases and requests to obtain 

medical, corporate and other non-

governmental records; obtain such records; 

read and interpret the information contained in 

such records and apply to a given situation 

¶ Use the Internet to obtain relevant and reliable 

information pertaining to a given situation 

Ethical Skills 

¶ Understand the legal process and the nature of law practice, emphasizing the role of the paralegal in the 

delivery of legal services 

¶ Understand the ways in which paralegal services are used in the delivery of legal services, including functions 

and tasks commonly performed by paralegals; the place of the paralegal in the delivery services team; the 

respective roles and responsibilities of the members of the legal team 

¶ Understand the evolving role of the paralegal and other non-lawyers in the delivery of legal services and in 

increasing access to legal services 

¶ Identify the professional associations that serve and promote the paralegal profession; understand the 

importance of participation in professional activities 

¶ Understand the legal and ethical principles that guide paralegal conduct 

¶ Demonstrate the ability to identify and resolve ethical dilemmas that may be confronted in the workplace 

¶ Understand the importance of continuing legal education for paralegals 



 

    P aralegal/Legal Studies Resources 

 
"ÌÁÃËȭÓ ,Á× $ÉÃÔÉÏÎÁÒÙ 

Ref  KF156 .B53 1999 
 
Legal Research :  How to Find and Understand the Law 

Ref  KF240 .E35 2003 
 
Martindale-Hubbell Law Directory 

Ref KF190 .M273 (16 vol.) 
 
The Bluebook : A Uniform System of Citation 

Ref  KF245 .U55 17th ed. 
 
Basic Legal Citation : LII (2007 ed.) 

by Peter W. Martin 
http://www.law.cornell.edu/citation/  

 
 

Department of Justice  

¶ DOJ Home Page      http://www.usdoj.gov/  

¶ Department of Justice Career Opportunities http://jobsearch.usajobs.opm.gov/a9dj.aspx 

Journals 

¶ The Business Lawyer 

¶ Law and Contemporary Problems 

¶ United States Code Congressional and Administrative News 

Judicial and Sentencing Agencies 

¶ U.S. Supreme Court     http://www.supre mecourtus.gov/ 
¶ U.S. Federal Judiciary     http://www.uscourts.gov/  
¶ Federal Judicial Center    http://www.fjc.gov/  
¶ Federal Magistrate Judge Association   http://www.fedjudge.org/  
¶ U.S. Sentencing Commission   http://www.ussc.gov/  
¶ Fedcrimlaw.com: A Guide to Federal Criminal Law http://www.fedcrimlaw.com/  
¶ United States Commission on Civil Rights  http://www.usccr.gov/  
¶ Human Rights & Equal Opportunity Commission http://www.hreoc.gov.au/  
¶ The Courts:  Due Process and Civil Liberties http://criminology.fsu.edu/p/cjl -due.php 
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Law Databases 

¶ United States Supreme Courts Cites  http://www.romingerlegal.com/supreme.htm  

¶ U.S. Supreme Court     http://supct.law.cornell.edu/supct/  

¶ U.S. Supreme Court Decisions   http://supcourt.ntis.gov /  

¶ FindLaw: Supreme Court Opinions   http://www.findlaw.com/casecode/supreme.html  

¶ U.S. Constitution:      http://library.law.emory.edu/index.php?id=3080  

Doesn't everyone carry a copy in their pocket?  

¶ Avalon Project: Historical Law Documents  http://avalon. law.yale.edu/default.asp 

¶ A Century of Lawmaking for a New Nation

 http://lcweb2.loc.gov/ammem/amlaw/lawhome.html  

¶ The Law Library of Congress   http://www.loc.gov/law/index.php  

¶ The U.S. Government Printing Office:   http://www.gpoaccess.gov/index.html  

Includes access to Bills currently being considered by Congress 

¶ The U.S. Court of Appeals, Eleventh Circuit Cases http://library.law.emory.edu/11circuit/  

¶ Faris Law Multiple Law Search Engine Forms on One Page http://www.farislaw.com/?dl=1  

¶ FedLaw     http://www.u sa.gov/Topics/Reference_Shelf.shtml 

¶ State and Territorial Laws              http://www.lawguru.com/ilawlib/index.php?id=17  

¶ Florida Statutes    

 http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Welcome/index.cfm?CFID=113986957&CFTOKEN=97550858 

¶ LawResearch     http://www.lawresea rch.com/ 

¶ HIEROS GAMOS ɀ      http://www.hg.org/index.html  

The Comprehensive Legal and Government Site  

¶ Meta-Index for U.S. Legal Research  http://gsulaw.gsu.edu/metaindex/  

¶ LawGuru.com: Search 200+ Legal Search Engines and Tools  http://www.lawguru.com/  

¶ Find Law: You can also receive Abstracts and Updates via e-mail http://www.findlaw.com/  

¶ Divorce Source:      http://www.divorcesource.com/  

family law , custody, alimony, support, and visitation  

¶ Legal Job Openings     http://www.nationjob.com/legal  

¶ The Code of Hammurabi   http://www.justlawlinks.com/REGS/codeham.htm  

¶ Boston College Law Library   http://www.bc.edu/schools/law/library/  

¶ Doing Business     http://www.doingbusiness.org/  

¶ Legal Information Institute @ Cornell Law School http://www.law.cornell.edu/  
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